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commencing at approximately 8:57 a.m., at

the law offices of ox Rothschild, LLP, 222 South

Ninth Street, Suite 2000, Minneapolis, Minnesota.
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             P R O C E E D I N G S

 

            THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Good morning.

Here begins day 2 in the videotaped

deposition of Dr. George Edwards in the

matter of American National Manufacturing,

Incorporated vs. Sleep Number Corporation,

et al., in the United States Patent and

Trademark Office before the Patent Trial and

Appeal Board, Case Numbers IPR20 9 00497,

IPR20 9 00500, and IPR20 9 005 4.

         Today s date is riday,

December 6th, 20 9.  The time on the video

monitor is 8:58 a.m.  The videographer today

is Kyle Stolis representing Planet Depos.

This video deposition is taking place at at

the office of ox Rothschild, LLP, in

Minneapolis, Minnesota.

         Would counsel please voice identify

themselves and state whom they represent.

            MR. HARE:  Jaspal Hare with
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    done anything to prepare for today's session?
A.  No.
Q.  Okay.  Did you look at any documents related
    to this matter?
A.  No.
Q.  Did you talk to anybody regarding this
    matter?
A.  No.
Q.  All right.  I want to just clean up one
    thing.  We may -- and it may or may not need
    cleanup, but we talked a lot about ANM
    products yesterday, right?
A.  Yes.
Q.  All right.  In your report you make clear
    you're accusing certain products, but not
    necessarily all of them, right?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes his testimony.
                THE WITNESS:  My report refers to
    certain ANM products.  My analysis refers
    specifically to versions of source code, ANM
    source code.
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    Spencer ane representing petitioner

    American National Manufacturing.

                MR. TO T:  Luke Toft,

    ox Rothschild, representing Sleep Number

    Corporation.

                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Thank you.

             The court reporter today is

    Amy Larson representing Planet Depos.

             Would the reporter please swear in

    the witness.

 

                GEORGE EDWARDS, Ph.D.,

         a witness in the above entitled action,

         after having been first duly sworn, was

         deposed and says as follows:

 

                     EXAMINATION

BY MR. HARE:

Q.  Good morning.  So since we concluded the

    deposition, have you done anything to prepare

    for today s  since we concluded the

    deposition yesterday, the session, have you
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                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Would it be fair to say that in the context
    we re discussing the ANM products, our
    discussion should be read in the context of
    your report that if we re talking about a
    certain element infringing, we re talking
    about the ones you accuse, not necessarily
    every ANM product?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form, object
    to the extent it mischaracterizes his
    testimony, object to the extent it s outside
    the scope of his direct testimony and/or
    calls for legal conclusions.
                THE WITNESS:  So I think I stated
    several times yesterday that I wasn t
    offering any opinions on infringement, so I
    don t believe that I made statements
    regarding infringement with respect to any
    ANM product or source code.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  So if we just, in my question, replaced
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    infringement with meeting the elements, would
    that be a fair statement then?
                MR. TOFT:  Same objections.
                THE WITNESS:  Can you -- can you
    repeat the question with --
                MR. HARE:  Let me just try to
    reread it.
             And, Counsel, I m going to warn you
    your objections are way out of line.  We may
    need to have a call with the Board if this
    continues.
                MR. TOFT:  I disagree.  They re
    appropriate objections based on the
    questions, but we ll see.
                MR. HARE:  We may need to have a
    call with the Board.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Would it be fair to say in the context we
    were discussing -- when we were discussing
    ANM products yesterday, that that discussion
    should be read in the context of your report?
    And by way of example, if we were talking
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A.  That --
                MR. TOFT:  Same objections.
                THE WITNESS:  It is -- it is
    correct to say that I do not have opinions
    regarding any ANM products that are not
    referred to in my report or any ANM source
    code that s not referred to in my report.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Is there a reason you re not answering my
    questions?  I looked over the rough, and this
    seems to be a continuing issue that you re
    answering your own questions, not mine.
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes.
                THE WITNESS:  I believe I just did
    answer your question.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  I believe you changed my question and
    answered a slightly different question.  Are
    you doing that intentionally?
A.  I'm doing my best to answer your questions.
Q.  Are you capable of answering my questions
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    about certain elements, claim elements
    meeting -- being met in the ANM products, we
    were talking about the ones you accused, not
    necessarily all ANM products?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes testimony and to form.
                THE WITNESS:  I think that s
    generally fair.  The -- the opinions I ve
    given are with respect to how the source code
    I analyzed meets the software-related
    elements of claims of the patents at issue.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  I wasn t trying to make this really
    complicated.  You re not trying -- in
    yesterday s testimony, you re not trying to
    accuse any extra products that you didn t
    accuse --
                MR. TOFT:  Same objections.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  -- of meeting claim elements that aren t
    specified in your report, correct?
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    correctly?
                MR. TOFT:  Objection to form to
    the extent it s harassment.
                THE WITNESS:  I -- my answer is
    the same, I m doing my best to answer your
    questions.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Do you recall we talked about claim 1 of
    the 747 yesterday?
A.  Yes, I do recall that.
Q.  Okay.  And we also talked about certain
    elements of claim 1 and various portions of
    the infringement contentions related to
    claim 1, correct?
A.  Yes, that's correct.
Q.  If those same elements appear in another
    claim, would your analysis or testimony about
    those elements change?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form and to
    the extent it calls for speculation and an
    incomplete hypothetical.
                MR. HARE:  Again, Counsel, I find
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    your objections, speaking objections and
    inappropriate.
                MR. TOFT:  If you want to give a
    specific example, Jaspal, feel free to do so.
    But this is a very broad, generalized
    question, and I can t not object --
                MR. HARE:  -- with speaking
    objection and disrupting the deposition.
             Please answer the question.
                THE WITNESS:  I think that where
    claim elements of different claims are
    identical, my -- the source code that I
    identified as meeting those claims is the
    same.
             In some cases there are slight
    differences between claims and the wording of
    claim elements that are generally similar,
    but not identical, and I would not be able to
    say -- make a blanket statement that there
    are no differences without reviewing the two
    claims side by side.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.
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Q.  Do you recall any -- any of those claims that
    are different?  And in particular I'm talking
    about independent claims.
A.  Okay.  That -- that does change the question.
    I -- the example I was about to give was that
    some of the claims require an additive
    pressure adjustment factor and some claims
    require a multiplicative pressure adjustment
    factor, so that was the example I was
    thinking of of where there can be differences
    in claims with respect to the pressure
    adjustment factor.
Q.  Okay.  As far as the independent claims, you
    don't recall any differences?
A.  I --
                MR. TOFT:  I'm just going to
    object to the extent it's -- he doesn't have
    them in front of him.
                THE WITNESS:  I can't recall off
    the top of my head whether there are any
    independent claims that have differences in
    wording with respect to the pressure
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BY MR. HARE:
Q.  And I m just trying to save time with -- if
    we need to go every single claim one by one
    and do the same analysis, we can.  But do you
    want to take a quick look at the patents,
    would that help?  And I m just going to have
    one -- probably one or two questions of would
    your analysis of pressure adjustment
    change -- sorry, pressure adjustment factor
    change?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  There are
    differences in the claims with respect to the
    pressure adjustment factor in some cases.
    And where there are differences in the claim
    with respect to the pressure adjustment
    factor in some cases, I believe I identified
    different code as meeting that claim element
    when there are differences in the wording of
    the claim element.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
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    adjustment factor as compared to claim 1 of
    the 747, which I believe is the claim we
    were looking at yesterday.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
             Can I -- could I ask the court
    reporter to please hand the witness Edwards
    Exhibits 9 and 10, which are the 15 -- sorry,
    Edwards Exhibit 8 and 9, which is the 747
    patent and the 154 patent.
                THE COURT REPORTER:  (Complies.)
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  My understanding is the stuff we discussed is
    in all independent claims of the -- those two
    patents I just handed you.  If you see
    anything significantly different than the
    elements we discussed yesterday, can you
    please let me know, in the independent
    claims?
A.  Okay.
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  Just a moment,
    please.  (Reviews document.)
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             So I think one -- one example I
    found of a -- different so far is that in
    claim -- independent claim 18 of the 154,
    claim element H refers to an updated pressure
    adjustment factor.  I don t believe that
    claim 1 of the 747 uses the phrase "updated
    pressure adjustment factor."
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  So that s just something extra that claim
    requires, correct, that s more than claim 1,
    correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    calls for a legal conclusion.
                THE WITNESS:  That is something
    that claim 18 of the 154 requires that
    claim 1 of the 747 does not explicitly
    require.
             Another difference that I see is
    that claim 1 of the 747 explicitly requires
    an inflate pressure adjustment factor and a
    deflate pressure adjustment factor.  Claim 1
    of the 154, as an example, does not use the
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    that I do not see explicitly in claim 1 of
    the '747.
Q.  Anything else?
A.  There are, I think -- I think there's at
    least one independent claim that I did not
    identify source code for in the infringement
    contentions.  I believe --
Q.  Which one is that?
A.  I believe it is independent -- independent
    claim 20 of the '154 is not included in the
    infringement contentions, if I am remembering
    correctly.
             Again, I don't have the infringement
    contentions in front of me at the moment, but
    my recollection is that independent claim 20
    of the '154 is not included in those
    infringement contentions.
Q.  You're not asserting an opinion that claim 20
    meets -- sorry.  Strike that.
             You're not asserting an opinion that
    the ANM product -- any ANM product meets the
    claim limitations of claim 20; is that
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    phrases "inflate pressure adjustment factor"
    and "deflate pressure adjustment factor," it
    uses the shorter and more general pressure
    adjustment factor.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Anything else?
A.  Claim 12 of the '154 also includes a modified
    pressure adjustment factor.  Claim 12 of
    the '154 also includes the limitation wherein
    the manifold pressure target is calculated to
    approximate the desired pressure set point
    for the air chamber as modified by the
    pressure adjustment factor to account for
    differences between the sensing pressure and
    the manifold and sensing pressure in the air
    chamber.
             So that clause is clearly related to
    the pressure adjustment factor and explicitly
    refers to differences between sensing
    pressure in the manifold and sensing pressure
    in the air chamber, which again is something
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    correct?
A.  That is correct.  At this time I'm not
    offering an opinion regarding the claims that
    are not included in the infringement
    contentions.
Q.  Thank you.
                MR. HARE:  Could I ask the court
    reporter to please hand the witness Edwards
    Exhibit 7.  Those are the unredacted
    infringement contentions.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Could you please confirm for me that claim 20
    is not being --
                THE COURT REPORTER:  (Hands
    document.)  I'm sorry, can you restate that?
    I wasn't --
                MR. HARE:  Sorry.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Could you please confirm for me that the
    claim 20 of the '154 patent is not being
    asserted as meeting the claim elements of --
    for any ANM product?
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A.  Yes.  Now with this in front of me, it
    appears my recollection was correct --
Q.  Okay.
A.  -- that claim 20 is not included.
Q.  Going back to my questions of any other
    differences, did we finish the -- finish that
    out?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  And that question was referring to the
    difference between the discussion of claim 1
    of the '174.
                MR. TOFT:  And I'll object to the
    extent it calls for a legal conclusion.
                THE WITNESS:  Those are the
    differences that I see right now regarding
    the pressure adjustment factor specifically
    and limited to the independent claims.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  How about the differences for -- with respect
    to the adjustment factor?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
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    chamber, and I do not see the phrase
    "configured to more accurately account for
    differences between sensing pressure in the
    manifold and sensing pressure in the air
    chamber" --
Q.  Okay.
A.  -- in claim 1 --
Q.  Anything else?
A.  -- of the '747.
Q.  All right.  Any other claims?
A.  There is a slight difference in wording in
    claim 18 of the '154 which recites
    calculating an updated pressure adjustment
    factor based upon the adjustment factor
    error, whereas claim 1 of the '747 uses the
    word "modifying the pressure adjustment
    factor based upon the adjustment factor
    error."
Q.  Anything else?
A.  I just noticed another difference regarding
    the pressure adjustment factor from the
    previous --
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BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Did you understand my question?  Same
    exercise, but with respect to the claim
    element adjustment factor.
A.  I understand that you're asking me what
    differences there are among the independent
    claims of the '747 and '154 with respect to
    the adjustment factor error?
Q.  That's correct.
                MR. TOFT:  And object to the
    extent it calls for a legal conclusion.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  To be clear, I'm asking with respect to your
    analysis.
A.  So one difference that I see with claim 12 of
    the '154 is that claim 12 includes modifying
    the pressure adjustment factor based upon the
    pressure adjustment factor error to create a
    modified pressure adjustment factor
    configured to more accurately account for
    differences between sensing pressure in the
    manifold and sensing pressure in the air
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Q.  Go ahead and --
A.  -- question that you were asking.
Q.  You can go ahead and tell me.
A.  Claim 10 of the '747 includes a limitation of
    storing the modified pressure adjustment
    factor, and I do not think that there is a
    limitation of storing the modified pressure
    adjustment factor in claim 1 --
Q.  Okay.  Anything else?
A.  -- of the '747.
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  Claim 16 of the '747
    also uses the wording "calculating an updated
    pressure adjustment factor based upon the
    adjustment factor error," which is -- again,
    it's a slight difference in the wording from
    claim 1 of the '747.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Anything else?
A.  Those are the differences that I see right
    now.
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Q.  All right.  Thank you.
             With the caveats you just noted,
    would it be fair to say that the independent
    claims of the '747 and the '154 patent are
    substantially similar with respect to the --
    with respect at least to the elements
    pressure adjustment factor and error
    adjustment factor?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form and to
    the extent -- I believe you mean adjustment
    factor error, if --
                MR. HARE:  That's correct.  I
    thought that's what I said, but --
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Would you like me to just read the question
    back?
A.  Sure.  Yeah, I also think you misspoke there.
    I think you meant pressure adjustment factor
    error, so if you could state your question
    again.
Q.  Let me see if I can clean those two things
    up.
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Q.  And if you could just turn to the cover of
    Edwards Exhibit 8, which is the '747 patent.
A.  (Complies.)
Q.  And you can put the '154 to the side for now.
A.  (Complies.)
Q.  Could you turn to Figure 1, please.  It's the
    second page, sir.
A.  (Complies.)
Q.  Are you familiar with that diagram?
A.  Yes.
Q.  Do you understand that diagram?
A.  I have some understanding of this diagram,
    but my understanding is that this diagram
    refers primarily to structural and mechanical
    elements.
Q.  I understand you may not understand Figure 1
    in the level of detail as an engineer, but do
    you understand Figure 1 at least as -- in the
    level of simplicity that it's drawn in?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  I am familiar with
    it and have -- I have read and generally
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             With the caveats you noted, would it
    be fair to say that the independent claims of
    the 747 and the 154 patents are
    substantially similar with respect to the
    elements pressure adjustment factor and
    adjustment factor error?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  There are certainly
    significant similarities with respect to
    those claim terms.
                MR. HARE:  Can we take a 30-second
    break.
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We re off the
    record at 9:31 a.m.
                (Recess.)
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We re back on
    the record at 9:32 a.m.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Could you do me a favor and hand Edwards
    Exhibit 7, the contentions, back to the court
    reporter, please.
A.  (Complies.)
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    understand the description of it provided in
    the disclosure.
                MR. HARE:  All right.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  So on Figure 1 you know where the bed is,
    right, you'd know where to sleep?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, I believe I can
    generally identify the bed in this diagram.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  And you can identify a hand controller to
    adjust pressure, correct?
A.  Yes, I believe I can.
Q.  You can identify the pump, correct?
A.  Yes, I believe I can.
Q.  You can identify a control box, correct?
A.  Yes, I believe so.
Q.  What -- what number is the pump?
A.  I believe the pump is number 20, and I'll
    just confirm that by checking the disclosure.
    (Reviews document.)  Yes.  The -- in
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    paragraph 3, I'm -- excuse me, column 3, the
    pump is identified as item 20 in Figure 1.
Q.  I'm going to -- would it be better if I just
    write pump next to it or would you prefer for
    me to just let you mark that exhibit?
A.  Um --
Q.  Let me state that again.
A.  -- if you want to write -- write on here, I'm
    happy to hand this to you.
Q.  Sure.
A.  (Hands document.)
Q.  I would like the record to reflect that I am
    writing the words "pump" next to 20.
             I'd like the record to reflect I'm
    actually going to highlight the item by 20
    with blue highlighter.
                MR. HARE:  Would you like to see
    it, Counsel?  (Indicating).
                MR. TOFT:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  I'm going to hand the exhibit back to the
    witness.  (Hands document.)
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A.  (Complies.)
Q.  Do you see 14-A and 14-B, those are air
    chambers, correct, or air bladders?
A.  14-A is identified as the first air chamber,
    and 14-B is identified as the second air
    chamber.
Q.  You see item 22, right?
A.  Yes, I do.
Q.  That's the remote control, correct?
A.  Yes.
Q.  And that would be used to send commands to
    the pump to increase pressure or potentially
    decrease pressure, correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  What's stated is
    that the remote control includes pressure
    increase and decrease buttons and allows the
    user to in increase or decrease the pressure.
             The description that I see of
    element 22 of Figure 1 doesn't explicitly
    refer to how it controls a pump directly in
    the way that you stated.
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             Did I properly identify in blue
    highlighter the pump --
A.  I believe so.
Q.  -- on that exhibit?  All right.
             And you can read my handwriting,
    correct?
A.  Yes, I can.
Q.  All right.  Number 12, that's the bed,
    correct?  If it's easier, you can flip
    back --
A.  That is --
Q.  Sorry.  I was going to say you can use the
    other patent to flip back and forth.
A.  That is correct, in Figure 1, item 12 is
    identified as the bed.
Q.  Do you have clear handwriting if -- or as
    clear as mine, do you think?
A.  I believe I can write legibly, if that's what
    you're asking.
Q.  Yeah.  Could you write "bed" next to
    Figure 12, please?  I'm going to hand you a
    red pen.  (Hands pen.)
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                MR. HARE:  Fair enough.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Could you -- could you write -- it's a
    handheld remote control, correct, 22?  And
    I'm looking at column 3, line --
A.  It is referred to --
Q.  -- 46 about --
A.  It is referred to as a handheld remote
    control in column 3.
Q.  Okay.  That's -- it refers to that because
    that's what it's supposed to be, correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    calls for speculation.
                THE WITNESS:  I -- I think that --
    yes, that's what -- that's what it says in
    column 3.
                MR. HARE:  All right.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Could you write "handheld remote control" by
    22?
A.  (Complies.)
Q.  Twenty-four is a control box, correct?
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A.  Twenty-four is a control box.
Q.  Could you write "control box" by 24?
A.  (Complies.)
Q.  Could you turn your attention to
    approximately columns 3 and 4, and this may
    make it go a little faster, and I'm just
    going to list some of the components in the
    control box and confirm that that's what's in
    there.  And it's approximately column 3
    starting at paragraph -- or line 44.
             The control box includes the power
    supply, correct?
A.  (Reviews document.)
                MR. TOFT:  Just to -- oh, sorry.
                THE WITNESS:  I see -- I see that
    control box comprises power supply, which is
    element 34.  And this is now referring to
    Figure 2.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Control box on Figure 1 that identifies 24
    includes a power supply, correct?
A.  I do not see the depiction of the power
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    figures?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Do you not understand that?
                MR. TOFT:  Same.
                THE WITNESS:  I understand that
    typically a disclosure can describe
    alternative embodiments and alternative forms
    of an invention.  So the inclusion of an
    element in one figure does not necessarily
    mean that it is required in all forms or
    embodiments that might be depicted in other
    figures.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  I m going to ask you a yes or no question,
    and if you can t answer it with a yes or no,
    just say I cannot answer it with a yes or no,
    otherwise I don t want anything else.  Am I
    clear?
A.  Okay.
Q.  Do you understand the basic concept in
    patents that when the same numeral is used in
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    supply in Figure 1, if that's what you're
    asking.  Maybe I'm just not seeing it right
    now.
Q.  It's not depicted in there, but it includes
    it, correct?
A.  The control box depicted in Figure 2 includes
    it.  So to the extent that those are the same
    control box, then the control box in Figure 1
    would include it also.
Q.  The control box depicted in Figure 2 is also
    numbered 24, correct?
A.  Yes, it is.
Q.  Okay.  Figure 1 control box is 24, correct?
A.  Yes.
Q.  Those are the same component, correct?
A.  Regarding the mechanical and structural
    elements, I -- that's not something that is
    incorporated in my --
Q.  You understand if you read a basic patent
    that one -- you when use the same number for
    the same thing, they're the same thing
    whether they're in two -- two different
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    multiple figures, they refer to the same
    component?
A.  I can't answer that with a yes or no.
Q.  Again, I'm going to ask you a yes or no
    question.  Please answer it with a yes or no
    answer or you cannot answer it.
             Referring to the '747, the items,
    the pump 20 and the control box 24 -- strike
    that.
             Referring to the '747, the control
    box 24 in Figure 1 is the same component as a
    control box in Figure 2, correct?
A.  I can't answer that with a yes or no.
Q.  Thank you.  The pump reflected in Figure 1,
    is that depicted anywhere else in the figures
    in the '747 patent?  I believe Figure 2.
A.  Figure 2 includes an element 20 that's
    identified as a pump.
Q.  Okay.  I'm going to do the same thing, I'm
    going to ask another yes or no question, same
    conditions, if you can't answer, just say so.
             The pump depicted in Figure 1,
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    number 20, is that the same component as
    number 20 depicted in Figure 2 in the '747
    patent?
A.  Both of them are pumps.
Q.  But is it the same pump?
A.  Not necessarily.
Q.  So back to my previous yes or no question you
    answered without a yes or no, did you do that
    on purpose?
A.  I -- I don't think that I'm required to
    answer questions with simply a yes or no.  My
    understanding is that when you ask a
    question, I am allowed to provide the answer
    that I think is the best answer to your
    question.
Q.  I believe I'm conducting this deposition and
    I -- my instruction was I believe fair,
    answer it with a yes or no, or if you cannot
    answer it with a yes or no, say so.  You're
    not entitled to pour out a narrative of your
    choosing at a deposition.
A.  I'm entitled to answer the questions.
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Q.  What other options would you need other than
    yes, no, or I can't answer it with a yes or
    no, other than giving your own narrative,
    which I believe you're attempting to do here?
A.  If you would like me to simply say that your
    question is not a yes or no question, then I
    am willing to do that.
Q.  Okay.  Well, I believe my instruction was you
    cannot fairly answer it with a yes or no.  I
    don't believe I'm asking you to tell me if my
    question is a yes or no.  Is that fair?
A.  It depends on the question.
Q.  So you're refusing to comply with my
    instruction?
                MR. TOFT:  Objection to the extent
    it calls for an incomplete hypothetical.
                THE WITNESS:  No, I'm not refusing
    to comply with your instruction.
                MR. HARE:  Thank you.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  So turning to the '747 patent, is the pump
    depicted in Figure 1, number 20, the same
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Q.  In compliance with your oath.
A.  Correct, and that's what I'm doing.
Q.  And I find the way you're answering the
    questions isn't in compliance with your oath.
    So I'm going to ask my yes or no question
    again, and can you answer it with a yes or no
    or say you cannot answer it with a yes or no.
    And if I want to ask more follow up, I will.
    And if I don't, I won't.
             Do you understand?
A.  I understand that I'm going to answer your
    question truthfully giving the answers that
    I --
Q.  Are you refusing to comply with my
    instructions?
A.  I'm re -- I'm refusing to let you tell me
    what my answer should be.
Q.  So are you refusing to comply with that
    instruction to answer a yes or no question?
A.  No.
Q.  So you will comply with that instruction?
A.  If appropriate and truthful.
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    component as number 20 depicted in Figure 2?
    Yes or no.
A.  I don't believe I can completely answer that
    question with just a yes or a no.
Q.  Thank you.  What information would you need,
    such as reading the patent more to be able to
    answer that question?
A.  I do not believe that the mechanical and
    structural components of the invention fall
    within my area of expertise or the analysis
    that I performed.
Q.  Okay.  Thank you.
             Turning to Figure 2, and I'm going
    to draw your attention to -- to paragraph --
    or column 3 around lines 45, "The pump 20
    includes a motor 42, pump manifold 43, relief
    valve 44, first control valve 45-A, second
    control valve" -- "control valve 45-B, and a
    pressure transducer 46"; is that correct?
A.  That is what it says here.
Q.  Is that correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
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                THE WITNESS:  Is that correct that
    that's what it says?
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  No, I'm asking is that what --
A.  Maybe I need you to repeat the question.
Q.  -- is depicted in Figure 2?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent
    it's outside the scope of the direct
    testimony.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, that is what is
    depicted in Figure 2.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Would those components be present in the pump
    of Figure 1 as well?
A.  They certainly could be.
Q.  Do you believe them to be?
A.  That is beyond the scope of my opinion,
    because that relates to the mechanical and
    structural elements of the invention.
Q.  So are you refusing to answer my question?
A.  I'm telling you that I cannot answer that
    question with an expert opinion about
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                THE COURT REPORTER:  I'm sorry --
                THE WITNESS:  Let me finish my
    answer.
                THE COURT REPORTER:  -- I can only
    take one person at a time.
                THE WITNESS:  I do not have formal
    knowledge and training in mechanical
    engineering and, therefore, I am not offering
    any expert opinions regarding mechanical and
    structural elements.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Did you offer an opinion regarding an element
    determining an initial pressure within the
    housing?
A.  Yes, I did.
Q.  Are there structural elements in that
    element?
A.  Yes, but there are also software elements in
    it.
Q.  Okay.  But you were able to do -- provide an
    opinion on determining initial pressure
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    mechanical elements, because I am a computer
    science software engineering and embedded
    systems expert, and you are asking me about
    mechanical and structural elements of the
    invention, which I have stated again and
    again are beyond my area of expertise and
    beyond the opinions that I've offered.
Q.  They're also beyond your capabilities to
    answer sitting right here?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent
    it's outside the scope of this -- of the
    direct testimony and to the extent it's
    harassment.
                THE WITNESS:  I don't provide
    expert opinions in areas in which I do not
    have sufficient knowledge and training to
    classify myself as an expert, and I do not
    have --
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Well, I'm not asking for your --
                THE WITNESS:  -- formal knowledge
    and training -- let me finish my answer --
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    within a pump housing?
A.  I offered an opinion on the software aspects
    of that claim element.
Q.  But not the hardware aspects?
A.  Not the mechanical elements, that's right.
Q.  So you couldn't tell me where the pump
    housing is; is that correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes testimony.
                THE WITNESS:  I've not offered an
    expert opinion of where the pump housing is.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  So your opinion of determining initial
    pressure, you cannot -- you did not offer
    whether that's within the pump housing or
    somewhere else?
                MR. TOFT:  Same objection and
    form.
                THE WITNESS:  My opinion was that
    the software determines an initial pressure
    from the pressure sensor.  The location of
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    the pressure sensor was not within the scope
    of my analysis.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  You can -- well, you can hang on to those.
             Could you turn your attention to --
    and I d ask the court reporter to hand you
    Edwards Exhibit 3, please.  You can give him
    the whole binder, I believe.  And if you need
    to look at any other exhibits in the binder,
    feel free.
                THE COURT REPORTER:  (Hands
    document.)
                MR. HARE:  Do you guys want to
    take a break before we go on?
                MR. TOFT:  I m okay.  It s up to
    you.
                THE WITNESS:  I m fine to
    continue.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.  We re
    probably -- this is going to be my last
    thing, so it ll probably be an hour at most,
    I think at most an hour.
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Q.  And if you turn to page 12.
A.  (Complies.)
Q.  You discussed that you -- you state that,
    "Certain versions of ANM software are
    substantially similar to Sleep Number
    software," correct?  And that's in bullet
    point 3.
A.  Yes, and there is an incorrect word that I
    used here in the -- so I should put this
    correction on the record at this point.
    The -- the last part of the sentence says,
    "The Sleep Number software that post dates
    the patent issuance," and that should say,
    "The Sleep Number software that post dates
    the patent filing."
Q.  Okay.  Duly noted.
             Does your report include any report
    or exhibits to the report include any
    Sleep Number software?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  My report discusses
    the Sleep Number software.  I'm not sure what
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                MR. TOFT:  I don't believe you
    have an hour left.
                MR. HARE:  How much time is left
    or how much time have we gone?
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Today?
                MR. HARE:  Yup.
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Today we have
    gone just about an hour.
                MR. HARE:  And how much yesterday?
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Seven hours and
    20 minutes.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
                MR. TOFT:  Twenty-one minutes,
    right?
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Twenty-one
    minutes.
                MR. HARE:  All right.  Well, we'll
    just finish it up then in 30 minutes or so.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Could you turn to Edwards Exhibit 3, which is
    your declaration, correct?
A.  That's right.
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    you mean by does it include the Sleep Number
    software.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Do you attach the Sleep Number software?
A.  The -- the Sleep Number software source code
    is not attached to the report.
Q.  Did you make that decision not to attach it
    or to attach it --
                MR. TOFT:  Objection.
                MR. HARE:  Sorry, let me rephrase.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Who made the decision whether or not to
    attach Sleep Number software source code?
A.  I don't recall having a specific discussion
    about that because I, as a practice, would
    not ever attach source code as an exhibit
    unless it was open source or public code are
    the only instances in which I can recall
    attaching source code as an exhibit to a
    report or declaration.
Q.  Are you relying on Sleep Number source code
    for your opinions in your report?
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A.  I am relying on my inspection of that source
    code.
Q.  Do you provide your analysis or thought
    processes to support your opinion stated in
    bullet point 3 on page 12 of your
    declaration?
A.  Yes, I believe I do.
Q.  Where?
A.  That is supported with the discussion in
    section 6 which discusses the Sleep Number
    software.  And then bullet point number 3 is
    referring specifically to claims 12 and 16 of
    the '172 patent.  So with respect to the ANM
    software and source code, there -- that
    discussion is in section 7.
Q.  So with respect to the Sleep Number side of
    the opinion, that's exclusively in paragraph
    33, correct, the analysis to support the
    Sleep Number side?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes.
                THE WITNESS:  No, it's paragraphs
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             Do you -- did you identify any
    variable names in your report or exhibits
    thereto with respect to any Sleep Number
    software products?
A.  No.
Q.  If you weren't provided source code with
    respect to the ANM products, could you have
    conducted your analysis that's in Edwards
    Exhibit 7, which is the unredacted
    infringement contentions?
A.  No, that -- that analysis focused heavily on
    the source code, so I could not have
    conducted that analysis without the source
    code.
Q.  So an end user of the product, he couldn't
    determine whether or not the claim elements
    are being -- sorry, strike that.
             An end user of the products could
    not determine whether or not all the claim
    elements, for example, the '747, claim 1, are
    being practiced by an ANM product?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form,
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    33 and 34.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
                THE WITNESS:  It's also referenced
    in paragraph 39, for example.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Did you provide any charts or similar type of
    analysis with respect to Sleep Number code or
    products?
A.  I did not create any charts with respect to
    the Sleep Number software.
Q.  Okay.  Do you identify any source code files
    in your report or exhibits with respect to
    any Sleep Number software?
A.  I did not identify any files by file name.
Q.  Did you identify any function names in your
    report or exhibits thereto with respect to
    any Sleep Number software or products?
A.  I don't think that I did.  I believe that the
    infringement contentions refer to the
    Sleep Number products, but do not identify
    specific functions.
Q.  Thank you.
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    incomplete hypothetical and speculation.
                THE WITNESS:  I -- I think that as
    I sit here right now, I would not know a way
    to conclusively determine whether all the
    claim elements of claim 1 were met without
    access to the source code.  I m not prepared
    to entirely rule out that possibility,
    because it s something -- it s a question I
    hadn t considered until this moment.
             But as I sit here right now, the
    source code seems like the -- the obvious way
    that you would determine whether some of the
    claim elements are met.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  I m going to try to ask the same question and
    fix -- fix a couple of things in this
    question.  It s going to be similar to
    just the question I asked.
             So an end user of an ANM product
    using the ANM product wouldn t know whether
    all the claim elements of, for example,
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    claim 1 of the 474 patents are being
    practiced, correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Give me one second to
    read this.
             Object to the extent it s an
    incomplete hypothetical, calls for
    speculation.  That s it.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  And, actually, I m going to have to reread
    the question, because I -- I think I messed
    up the patent number.
             An end user of an ANM product that s
    being -- that uses the code that practices
    one of these -- strike that.
             So an end user of an ANM product
    using the ANM product wouldn t know whether
    all the claim elements of, for example,
    claim 1 of the 747 patent are being
    practiced, correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    calls for speculation and is an incomplete
    hypothetical.
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    copying; is that correct?
A.  Section 9 does relate to copying, but is also
    discussed in other places in the report.
Q.  Do --
A.  And I need to also note the same correction
    that I noted earlier appears in paragraph 45,
    first sentence, the phrase, "Sleep Number
    software that post dates patent" -- "patent
    issuance," should read, "Sleep Number
    software that post dates patent filing."
Q.  Thank you.  Duly noted.
A.  And I'll also just note that those
    corrections were made in my supplemental
    declaration.
Q.  Okay.
                MR. HARE:  Can we go off the
    record for 30 seconds.
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We're off the
    record at 10:18 a.m.
                (Recess.)
                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  And we are back
    on the record at 10:22 a.m.
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                THE WITNESS:  I agree that simply
    using an ANM product is -- would not provide
    sufficient information to conclusively
    determine whether all the claim elements are
    met.
                MR. HARE:  Thank you.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  You provide an opinion regarding copying,
    correct?
A.  Yes.
Q.  Could you just turn to that section of your
    report.
             I'm just going to read the last two
    questions over again, because I didn't have
    my mic on.
             You provide an opinion regarding
    copying, correct?
A.  Yes.
Q.  And could you turn to that section of your
    report.
A.  Which section are you referring to?
Q.  I believe it's section 9 relates to the
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BY MR. HARE:
Q.  We were focusing on the copying opinions --
    sorry, strike that.
             Just to get back to where we were,
    could I draw your attention to your copying
    opinions in your report?
A.  Okay.
Q.  Do you provide any kind of comparison, like a
    side-by-side chart comparing ANM products or
    ANM code to Sleep Number products or
    Sleep Number code?
A.  Not in the form of a side-by-side chart.
Q.  Okay.  I'm going to just rephrase that
    question.
             In support of your copying opinions,
    do you provide a comparison of ANM products
    or ANM code to Sleep Number products or
    Sleep Number code?
A.  Yes.
Q.  Where is that?
A.  So, for example, paragraph 39, for example,
    talks about the similarities.
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Q.  Anything else?
A.  Paragraph 45 identifies the aspects in which
    they're similar.  And this is also referred
    to in paragraphs 48 and 49, for example.
Q.  Anything else?
A.  Paragraph 50, 51, 52, and then it's kind of
    summarized at the end of paragraph 54.
Q.  Okay.  As far as -- strike that.
             Other than the paragraphs you --
    just to let you know, I'm just going to ask
    that question again, because it looks like
    there's a typo in it or I misspoke.
             Other than the paragraph you just
    listed, is there anything else that supports
    your opinions regarding copying?
A.  Yes, there is.
Q.  What's that?
A.  The other things that support that opinion
    are the -- Sleep Number's contentions, as
    well as the Sleep Number source code, the ANM
    source code, and the documents that are
    referenced in my declaration that identify
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    opinions regarding copying, correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Same objection.
                THE WITNESS:  Well, I think the --
    the report itself is the work product that
    describes the findings for my inspection of
    that code.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Other than the report itself, which is your
    declaration, is there any other work product?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
                THE WITNESS:  Aside from the
    declaration and the exhibits and materials
    referenced, there s no other work product
    that I am relying on.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  In support of the -- the copying opinions,
    you don t provide any kind of side-by-side
    comparison of ANM products, ANM code or
    Sleep Number products or Sleep Number code,
    correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes and to form.
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    the timeline when products were released and
    the versions of source code that were
    incorporated into different products, that --
Q.  You don't provide any Sleep Number source
    code to support your copying contentions,
    correct?
A.  I'm not sure what you mean by I didn't
    provide it.  I --
Q.  I'll rephrase it.
A.  Sleep Number provides the code, I analyze the
    code.
Q.  You don't rely on any Sleep Number code to
    support your opinions regarding copying,
    correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes.
                THE WITNESS:  No, that's not
    correct.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  Your report or any exhibits thereto don't
    provide any kind of work product analyzing
    the Sleep Number code to support your
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                THE WITNESS:  I m not sure exactly
    what you mean by side-by-side.  I compared
    the two software programs with respect to
    their functionality.  I did not do a -- a
    diffing analysis, which is what I would think
    of as a side-by-side analysis, because it was
    not an appropriate analysis in this -- in
    this context.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  In support of your copying opinions, your
    report and exhibits don t cite any
    Sleep Number source code, correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Object to the extent it
    mischaracterizes.
                THE WITNESS:  It cites to the
    source code generally and the -- the
    different folders of source code that were
    produced.  It does not cite to specific files
    within those folders.
BY MR. HARE:
Q.  And it doesn t cite to any specific line
    numbers or variable names or function names,
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correct?
            MR. TOFT:  Object to form.
            THE WITNESS:  That s correct.
            MR. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.  I --
I believe I m done, but if you want to start
prepping, I ll just double check.
            MR. TOFT:  Okay.
            MR. HARE:  Can we go off the
record, please.
            THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We re off the
record at 10:32 a.m.
            (Recess.)
            THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  And we re back
on the record at 10:35 a.m.
            MR. HARE:  Thank you, Dr. Edwards,
I have no further questions at this time.
I ll pass the witness.
            MR. TOFT:  And I d like to go off
the record.
            THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We re off the
record at 10:35 a.m.
            (Lunch recess.)
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    you the source code itself?
A.  Yes, I do.
Q.  And do you recall yesterday --
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  -- when counsel asked you questions about
    Sleep Number s contentions related to the
    source code without showing you those
    contentions?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.
                MR. TOFT:  What is your objection?
                MR. HARE:  You re not specific as
    to what you re talking about.
                MR. TOFT:  In what regard?
                MR. HARE:  So for both those
    objections, you re talking generally about
    some testimony, you haven t laid a foundation
    specifically for what -- which part of the
    conversation you re talking about or if any
    particular -- particular question.
BY MR. TOFT:
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                THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  And we re back
    on the record at 12:16 p.m.
                MR. HARE:  Before we start, I d
    like to make a note on the record.  We agreed
    to a 45-minute break.  We think now over an
    hour and a half of coaching the witness is
    excessive and too far.  Go ahead.
                MR. TOFT:  I -- we agreed to take
    a break so that I could prepare for my
    redirect.  I apologize if it went longer than
    I initially anticipated, but I let you know
    that I would be taking longer, and I believe
    I m entitled to as much time as I need to
    prepare.
             With that said, I will proceed.
 
                      EXAMINATION
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Good afternoon, Dr. Edwards.
             Do you recall yesterday when counsel
    asked you questions about the line numbers
    and functions of source code without showing
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Q.  Dr. Edwards, do you recall yesterday when
    counsel asked you questions about the line
    numbers and functions of source code with
    respect to the ANM source code that you
    analyzed in this proceeding without showing
    you the source code itself?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
    Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, I recall that.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And do you recall yesterday when counsel
    asked you questions about Sleep Number s
    infringement contentions, which are the
    contentions that are referenced in your
    declaration, without showing you those -- the
    unredacted contentions?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
    Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, I recall
    receiving questions about those contentions
    while I was not able to look at the
    contentions.
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BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And there was a -- indeed, you didn t have a
    single exhibit in front of you for several
    hours; is that your recollection?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
    Objection; form.  Objection; foundation.
                MR. TOFT:  I m just laying
    foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  I -- I recall being
    questioned for numerous hours yesterday
    without any documents to use to answer those
    questions.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  How, if at all, would your testimony have
    changed if you had the actual printed source
    code that you analyzed of ANM s in front of
    you for that testimony?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
    Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  I --
                MR. TOFT:  I m sorry, let me
    just -- what is your objection to form?
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    confirm the correctness of my answers rather
    than going based only on my recollections.
    But as I sit here today, I believe all my
    answers were correct, and so I do not wish to
    change any of them.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And how, if at all, would your testimony have
    changed if you had been given the unredacted
    infringement contentions, I believe that was
    marked as Exhibit 1 and 7, in front of you
    during your testimony yesterday?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
    Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  I think I would say
    that -- give the same answer.  My testimony
    would not change, because I believe all the
    answers that I gave were correct.  Having the
    document in front of me is helpful to confirm
    that my answers are correct.  But, again, as
    I -- as I sit here now, I don t know of any
    testimony that I would give differently.
                MR. TOFT:  Okay.
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                MR. HARE:  You re not specific as
    to what testimony you re talking about,
    you re covering a whole --
                MR. TOFT:  He has already
    testified that he remembers the -- the
    testimony.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.  I don t believe
    it s clear.  Merely because he remembers it,
    it s not clear on the record what we re
    talking about.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  How, if at all, would your testimony related
    to ANM source code have changed if you had
    the actual printed source code from ANM that
    you analyzed in this proceeding in front of
    you?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
    Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  I don t believe that
    any of my answers would have changed.  If I
    had had the source code in front of me, I
    would have simply been able to further
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BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Would having the source code in front of you
    allowed you to be more specific in answering
    any of the questions that you were asked?
A.  Yes.
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
                THE WITNESS:  I think that it s
    difficult for me as I sit here right now to
    remember every question that was asked, but
    certainly the source code is the fundamental
    basis for much of the analysis that I did.
    And so having that available to look at when
    answering questions about it, is helpful and
    allows for the greatest degree of certainty
    and specificity.
                MR. TOFT:  Okay.
                MR. HARE:  I m also going to
    object to the answer to the extent a
    narrative was provided in response to a yes
    or no question.  And to the extent the form
    was unclear of the question, objection to
    form to the previous question.
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                MR. TOFT:  Jaspal, if you agree it
    was a yes or no question, then it s not a
    leading question, so I would appreciate it if
    you would make only appropriate objections in
    the future.
                MR. HARE:  I don t know if that
    makes any sense.  And the way you conducted
    your objections during the cross was
    absolutely inappropriate and it s not even
    close to what you were doing.
                MR. TOFT:  I disagree.  And feel
    free to make appropriate objections in the
    future, but I m going to continue with the
    redirect.
                MR. HARE:  My objections are --
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  You were asked --
                MR. HARE:  Go ahead.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  You asked several questions yesterday about
    your analysis regarding the -- how ANM s
    products that practiced the versions of
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    whether there -- it has achieved success in
    the marketplace, whether it has technical
    value, and those are the -- the ones that I
    can think of.
Q.  Okay.  And I believe this is -- it's already
    in front of you.  Can I have you open up your
    Exhibit 3, Deposition Exhibit 3, which I
    believe is your declaration in the '154
    proceeding.
A.  (Complies.)
                MR. HARE:  If you could just give
    me a second to get there too.
                MR. TOFT:  Well, now I have lost
    my Exhibit 3.
                MR. HARE:  Just to be clear,
    you're saying Edwards Exhibit 3, correct?
                MR. TOFT:  Edwards depo Exhibit 3.
    Okay.  I will pull it up.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And can I have you turn to -- I believe it's
    paragraph 29, but let me just confirm.
             Bullet point 2 is an opinion that
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    source code that you analyzed read on the
    functionality of various claims of the
    patents.
             Do you remember that?
                MR. HARE:  Objection to form.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, I --
                MR. HARE:  Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do recall
    that.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And you were also asked if you had an
    understanding of secondary considerations?
A.  Yes, I recall that as well.
Q.  What is that understanding?  What is your
    understanding of secondary considerations?
A.  My understanding is that there are certain
    considerations that may be considered in
    determining obviousness of an invention or a
    claim that are termed secondary
    considerations, and those secondary
    considerations include things such as whether
    an invention or product has been copied,
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    you ve offered in this case, correct?
                MR. HARE:  Objection to form.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, that s correct.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And is that opinion -- do you still hold that
    opinion?
A.  Yes, I do.
Q.  Counsel also asked you about copying.  I
    believe bullet point -- can you identify the
    bullet points in paragraph 29 that relate to
    that opinion?
A.  Sure.
                MR. HARE:  Objection to form.
                THE WITNESS:  Bullet point
    number 3 relates to that, because it states
    that certain versions of ANM s source code
    have similarities with -- or I should say
    certain versions of ANM software have
    similarities with Sleep Number software.
             And the bullet -- the fourth bullet
    point also relates to that for the same
    reasons.
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             The fifth bullet point, which is now
    on page 13 of my declaration, also relates to
    that.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And you say that the -- the software versions
    that you analyzed have substantial
    similarities.  How did you determine whether
    or not one version of source code that you
    looked at was similar to another version of
    source code?
                MR. HARE:  Objection to form.
    Objection; foundation.
                MR. TOFT:  What are your
    foundation objections?
                MR. HARE:  There s no foundation
    for what version of source code you re
    talking about.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Dr. Edwards, how did you determine any
    similarities between ANM s source code that
    you analyzed?
A.  So --
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    conclusions and findings associated with it.
             So it would be helpful if you could
    clarify your question with respect to --
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  So let me break this down.  How did you --
                MR. HARE:  Just a second.  Give me
    a second to look over this answer.
             I m going to object on the scope as
    well to that question.  Go ahead.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  So let me break down your answer there.  How
    did you determine whether or not there was
    any similarities between version 1.8 and
    version 1.97?
A.  The way --
                MR. HARE:  Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  The way that that
    was done was during my inspections of ANM
    source code it -- which I had access to
    electronic copies of all of the source code
    on a computer with various source code
    analysis tools.
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                MR. HARE:  Objection to form.
                THE WITNESS:  -- regarding the --
    regarding similarities between different
    versions, I think it s helpful to be precise
    about what we re talking about.  So there is
    a portion of the declaration that discusses
    similarities among versions of ANM s source
    code, meaning similarities between one
    version of ANM source code to another version
    of ANM source code.
             For example, I noted that there was
    a high degree of similarity between ANM s
    versions 1.8, 1.97 and 2.0, and there was
    also a high degree of similarity between
    version 1.9 and 1.92.  So that is one
    analysis of version similarity that is
    described in the declaration.
             Separately from that, there was an
    analysis of the degree of similarity between
    versions of Sleep Number s software and ANM s
    software that was based on a slightly
    different type of analysis and had different

38
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

             In particular, one of the tools that
    I requested and was made available to me
    during that inspection is known as a diffing
    tool.  This is a tool that allows you to
    select different files or folders and it will
    automatically compare those files and folders
    and show you the places within the files and
    folders that have changed and the places that
    are the same.
             So using that tool, I was able to do
    comparisons of the different versions of
    ANM s source code and determine that there
    was a high degree of similarity between, for
    example, version 1.8 and version 1.97.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Did you use that same methodology to
    determine any differences and similarities
    between 1.8 and 2.0?
A.  Yes, I did.
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And did you use that same methodology for any
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    similarities between 1.97 and 2.0?
A.  Yes, I did.
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And how did you determine whether or not
    there were any differences between any of
    those versions of source code, versions 1.8,
    1.97 and 2.0, to version 1.9, for instance?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  So the -- the same
    process was followed.  What I recall doing
    was these pair-wise comparisons across, you
    know, the various pairs of versions that were
    provided for inspection.
             So I think this is -- this is over a
    year ago, but my -- what I recall doing and
    what my normal process would be would be to,
    you know, compare 1.8 to 1.9, 1.9 to 1.92,
    et cetera, and then start doing some
    comparisons of -- of the other versions that
    are, you know, further apart in time or in
    numbering to get a sense of which versions
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                MR. HARE:  Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  It s a tool that s
    very commonly used both in academia and in
    industry.  It s been used reliably for -- for
    many, many years.  It s a -- I guess one
    example of a type of static analysis, which
    is what is described in my declaration as the
    analysis method that was applied in this --
    in this case.
                MR. HARE:  I m also going to
    object on form to that previous question --
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And did you --
                MR. HARE:  -- and scope.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And did you reliably apply the diffing
    analysis to the source code in this case?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
    Objection; scope.  Objection; foundation.
                THE WITNESS:  I believe I did.  I
    essentially, you know, systematically went
    through and compared -- did pair-wise
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    look the same, which look different, what are
    the significant aspects of the code that have
    changed from one version to the next.
             That s the general process that I --
    I used in comparing all those versions of
    code.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And you mentioned this diffing analysis.  Is
    that a -- was there sufficient data, source
    code for you to be able to perform the
    diffing analysis?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
                THE WITNESS:  With respect to the
    ANM versions that are referenced in my
    declaration, yes, there was sufficient source
    code, what appeared to be to be substantially
    complete source code for those products, so,
    yes.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And is diffing a tool that is considered
    reliable in the art of source code?
A.  Yes, it --
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    comparisons between these different versions,
    and I believe that to be a reliable method.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And what differences, if any, were there
    between the different versions of ANM code
    that you analyzed?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; scope.
    Objection; foundation.
                MR. TOFT:  What is your objection
    to scope?
                MR. HARE:  We didn t ever talk
    about the differences between the ANM code in
    the manner you are.
                MR. TOFT:  You discussed that
    he -- you asked him questions about the
    different ANM code that he analyzed and you
    pointed that out in the declaration.
                MR. HARE:  I don t believe in the
    manner you are asking questions or the scope
    of your questions.  We asked questions about
    certain -- certain versions and certain parts
    of his declaration.  You re going into the
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    differences between, I believe actually, code
    that s not even accused or we even discussed
    yesterday or today during cross.
                MR. TOFT:  Which code was not
    discussed yesterday?
                MR. HARE:  I don t believe we
    discussed 1.9.
                MR. TOFT:  At all?
                MR. HARE:  I don t believe we did.
                MR. TOFT:  Okay.  Your objection
    is noted.  I will reask my question.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  What differences, if any, were there between
    the different versions of ANM code that you
    analyzed in this proceeding?
A.  Well --
                MR. HARE:  Again, same objections.
                THE WITNESS:  I -- those
    differences are stated in starting around
    paragraph 47 of my declaration.  And so
    what -- what I found is that version 1.9 and
    1.92 do not incorporate the software-based
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    extent you deem it necessary after my
    question so that we can proceed in an orderly
    fashion?
                MR. HARE:  I m not doing it to
    every question.  If you don t ask
    objectionable questions, I won t have to.
                MR. TOFT:  Please object after my
    question.
                MR. HARE:  And certain of your
    questions, it s because the answer, he
    provides a narrative that s not even --
                MR. TOFT:  I m not asking for an
    explanation, I m just asking you to stop
    disrupting.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And this difference that you identified in
    the 1.9, did you identify any differences in
    any other versions of code?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
    Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes.  So what that
    showed me was that those -- the modifications
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control functions of the 154 and 747
patents that are necessary to implement what
I referred to in my declaration as the
improved target pressure system.
         In other words, they did -- they
were -- the code had been modified between
version 1.8 and 1.9, modifications were made
to the code to remove necessary logic for the
improved target pressure system, namely,
logic that uses an adjustment -- pressure
adjustment factor to allow the system to
reach a desired pressure more quickly and
with less turning on and off of the motor to
reach that target pressure.
            MR. HARE:  Just to be clear, I
think -- I believe I said same objections.  I
want to be clear my objections are
foundation, form and scope.
            MR. TOFT:  Jaspal, if you re going
to object after every question and every
answer, this is starting to get very
disruptive.  Can you please object to the
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    that I described took place between
    version 1.8 and 1.9, were also present in
    version 1.92.
             In other words, version 1.92 also
    did not have the software control functions
    disclosed in the 154 and 747 patents, and
    is similar to version 1.9 in that respect,
    then those -- when we look at version 1.97,
    those -- that -- those control functions are
    reincorporated back into the code.
             In other words, it looks like that
    the changes that were implemented when moving
    to version 1.9 were reverted or undone such
    that version 1.97 is highly similar to
    version 1.8.  And the same can be said of
    version 2.0, it is also similar to versions
    1.97 and 1.8 in that respect.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Are there differences between versions 1.8
    and 1.97?
A.  There are --
                MR. HARE:  Objection; scope.
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                THE WITNESS:  There are other
    differences, but those differences are more
    superficial in nature and not directly
    relevant to any of the opinions that I ve
    offered in this declaration.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Are there differences between versions 1.8
    and 2.0?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  It s the same --
    same thing I just said is -- is true again,
    yes, there are some other changes that were
    made to the -- the source code.
             For example, I think one that we
    discussed yesterday was that comments that
    had previously been written in a foreign
    language, in many cases had been rewritten in
    English.  But there were also changes to the
    source code itself.  However, many of those
    changes again are more super -- either
    superficial in nature or were just not
    changes that had some material relation or
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    in the code, the foreign language comments,
    that is, would you have been able to -- would
    that have affected your analysis?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
                THE WITNESS:  No, that wouldn t
    have affected my analysis.  I m not able to
    read the foreign language comments anyway.
    In the case where comments are in English,
    again, that -- that doesn t affect my
    analysis, because source code comments do not
    have any impact on the behavior of the
    program.
             They are notations made by a
    programmer to add text within the program
    that can be read by other programmers, but
    they are ignored by the computer when the
    source code is actually executed.
             And in particular, the -- my
    declaration gave a -- had a little background
    section talking about the process of
    compilation, and when the -- when source code
    is piled into object code, the comments are
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    impact to the -- to the opinions that I
    provided in my declaration.
                MR. TOFT:  Okay.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And were there any differences between the
    1.9 and 1.92 that you noted that would impact
    your opinion?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  There -- my
    recollection is that the -- the two -- those
    two versions are not identical, but the
    answer to your question would be no, the
    differences between 1.9 and 1.92 were not
    material to the opinions that I offered in
    this declaration.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  You just mentioned the testimony yesterday
    about a comments -- foreign language
    comments, and I believe you said some of them
    were translated to English; is that right?
A.  Yes.
Q.  Would -- if those comments were not present
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    removed from that, so my -- my analysis is
    based on what the actual source code does and
    not what it says in the comments.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And were any of the comments necessary to
    perform your analysis?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
                THE WITNESS:  For the -- for the
    same reason, I would say no, they re not
    necessary to the analysis.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Can I have you turn to section 9 of your
    declaration?
A.  (Complies.)  Okay.
Q.  Did you -- what is your opinion that is
    expressed in section 9?
                MR. HARE:  Objection to form.
                THE WITNESS:  The key opinions
    that are expressed in section 9 relate to the
    important changes that occurred in ANM s
    source code and the timing of those changes
    and how those changes relate to the 154

Transcript of George Edwards, Ph.D., Volume 2 22 (390 to 393)

Conducted on December 6, 2019

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

American National Manufacturing Inc. 
Exhibit 1056 

IPR2019-00514 
Page 23



394
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

and 747 patents.
         So, for example, it was -- it s my
opinion stated in paragraph 48 that version
1.8 reads on the claims of the 154 and 747
patents, and for that reason has a high
degree of similarity with the Sleep Number
software that I inspected with the exception
of one very early version that s -- I
referred to as the Winland code in the
earlier section talking about the -- the
Sleep Number software.  So that was one of
the key opinions.
         I also provided an opinion that
those changes appear to be what I called a
step backwards from a design perspective,
because they don t allow the system to
achieve a target pressure with the same speed
and convenience as the source code of
version 1.8.
         And if you give me just a moment,
let me see if there s any other key opinions
expressed in section 9.  (Reviews document.)
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and industry for -- for many years in which I
know that the normal process of software
development is that successive versions of
software add and improve on functionality
that was in previous versions.  There are
generally -- new features are added, bugs and
flaws in the software are removed and the
software evolves over time in a way that its
overall quality improves.
         It is unusual for a software product
at a later version to undo or revert changes
that were made in the prior versions and
essentially go back to something that existed
longer before that.
         The -- the -- I would say the
typical reason that that happens, in my
experience, is that there was some kind of a
problem or issue that was created by some
changes that were made and, therefore, those
changes needed to be undone because there was
a realization made that those -- that those
changes were not beneficial and, therefore,
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             So I guess the -- the only other
    thing that I would mention that s an
    important opinion in section 9 is the final
    sentence of paragraph 53, which states
    that -- my opinion that the ANM s reversion
    to a prior version of the source code after
    having removed the improved target control
    system functionality, I think is evidence
    that that functionality had a technical
    benefit or solved the problem.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  What is your basis for your opinion that it
    had a -- sorry, let me -- that ANM s
    reversion is evidence of a technical benefit,
    or has technical value, as you state here in
    paragraph 53?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; scope.  And
    objection, leading.
                THE WITNESS:  My basis for that is
    my knowledge and experience as a software
    engineer generally and my work in the
    software engineering community in academia
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    the engineers decided to undo those changes.
             That s based on my experience why
    software versions are reverted.  And so that,
    I think, is circumstantial evidence that that
    is what has occurred in this case, and that
    the changes that were made between version
    1.8 and 1.9 were later determined to be not
    beneficial and perhaps even harmful in some
    sense.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Is it your opinion that version 1.8 has
    benefits that 1.9 does not?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
    Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  Yes, that s what --
    that s what my -- my declaration says, that
    version 1.8 has the software control
    functions disclosed in the 154 and 747
    patents, and for that reason, it provides the
    feature of an improved target pressure
    system, what I -- what I referred to as an
    improved target pressure system, meaning it
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    can reach a target pressure with greater
    speed and convenience, and that feature and
    benefit is not present in version 1.9 of
    ANM s software.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Was there a benefit that you re aware of in
    1.9 that is not present in version 1.8?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
    Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  I was not able to
    identify a technical benefit to those changes
    that would justify the drawbacks of those
    changes.  In fact, I wasn t able to identify
    any technical benefit at all, so I -- I don t
    think that this was -- at least I was not
    able to -- to find any evidence that this was
    a situation where there was some type of a
    tradeoff occurring, and one drawback was
    accepted in exchange for some other benefit
    that was achieved.
             In terms of the -- the technical --
    the technical benefits and the behavior of
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    is that correct?
A.  Yes --
                MR. HARE:  Objection; form.
    Objection; foundation.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  Why is that -- why would a diffing analysis
    not have been appropriate between ANM and
    Sleep Number s source code that you reviewed?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; foundation.
    Objection; leading.  Objection; form.
                THE WITNESS:  The -- for starters,
    I did not -- I never had access to a computer
    that had both sets of source code on it.  I
    performed separate inspections of each of the
    source code due to the restrictions in the
    protective order.  And so in order to do the
    diffing, you have to have both sets of code
    on the same computer.  So there s just a
    technical barrier, for starters.
                MR. TOFT:  Okay.
                THE WITNESS:  Secondly, I did not
    ask to do that or think that it was an
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    the code itself, it seems like the changes
    that were made between version 1.8 and
    version 1.9 were -- had no -- had no benefit.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And did 1.92 restore those benefits?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
    Objection; scope.
                THE WITNESS:  No.  1.92 is similar
    to version 1.9, and then the -- the benefits
    of the improved target pressure system were
    restored in version 1.97.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And 2.0?
A.  Yes.
                MR. HARE:  Objection; leading.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  We talked about the -- the diffing analysis
    that you performed an ANM s source code.
             Did you perform a diffing -- you
    testified earlier today that a diffing
    analysis would not have been appropriate
    between ANM and Sleep Number s source code;
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    appropriate or needed analysis, because to my
    knowledge, I ve not seen any evidence to date
    that ANM had direct access to Sleep Number s
    source code, and I ve not been made aware of
    any allegation of literal source code theft
    or copying, therefore, the diffing analysis,
    which operates at the level of source code
    and lines of source code, is not going to
    show the similarity that I was interested in
    investigating.
             I was interested in investigating
    similarity at the level of the software s
    functionality, and in particular, the
    functionality that is taught in the 154
    and 747 patents, which can generally be
    referred to as the improved target pressure
    system, but more specifically includes the
    use of a pressure adjustment factor to
    calculate a target pressure and update the
    pressure adjustment factor based on a
    pressure adjustment factor error.
             And so that is the -- the -- the
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    type of similarity that I was looking for,
    and that is not a similarity that would be
    determined through the use of a diffing
    operation.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And did you conduct an analysis to see if
    there was a level of software s functionality
    between the ANM source code you reviewed and
    the Sleep Number source code you reviewed?
                MR. HARE:  Objection; foundation.
    I m sorry, strike that.
             Objection; scope.  Objection -- just
    a second.
             Objection; leading.  That s it.
                MR. TOFT:  Jaspal, why do you
    think that there s an objection to scope?
                MR. HARE:  I don t believe we
    discussed that during the cross.
                MR. TOFT:  You asked about
    copying.
                MR. HARE:  Not -- not the way
    you re asking it or the level you are.
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    Sleep Number source code you reviewed.
                MR. TOFT:  I was using his
    language from the previous answer.
                MR. HARE:  Okay.
                MR. TOFT:  It s not a leading
    question.  Please stop objecting on those.
                MR. HARE:  I ll make my
    objections.
                THE WITNESS:  Okay.  I need to be
    reminded what the question is.
                MR. TOFT:  Yup, no problem.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  So the question is:  Did you conduct any
    analysis to see if there is a level of
    software functionality similarities between
    ANM source code that you reviewed in this
    proceeding and Sleep Number source code that
    you reviewed?
A.  Yes, I did.
                MR. HARE:  Same objections.
BY MR. TOFT:
Q.  And how did you conduct that analysis?
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            MR. TOFT:  But you agree you asked
about copying?
            MR. HARE:  Yeah, of course.
            MR. TOFT:  And what is your
objection to leading?
            MR. HARE:  Because you re leading
him to that there s a level -- I m sorry, the
screen jumped.  That there was a level of
software s functionality between the ANM
code --
            MR. TOFT:  I just asked if he --
            MR. HARE:  -- Sleep Number --
            MR. TOFT:  -- conducted an
analysis to see if there was a level of
functionality.  Where do you think the
suggestion in that question is?
            MR. HARE:  That portion I just
read you.
            MR. TOFT:  Can you read it again?
            MR. HARE:  You re suggesting that
there s a level of software s functionality
between the ANM source code reviewed and the
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A.  I conducted that analysis by my
    examination --
                MR. HARE:  Objection; foundation.
    And objection, scope.
                THE WITNESS:  Okay.  I conducted
    that analysis by -- through my inspection of
    each set of source code that was produced.
    In particular, I went through the source code
    files carefully using the -- the static
    analysis tools that I requested that are
    listed in my -- my declaration in order to
    determine how that code works and what it
    does, what are the main components within the
    software, how are they -- how do they relate
    to each other and what do they do.  And I, in
    particular, investigated whether the claims
    and claim elements that are disclosed in
    the 154 and 747 patents were present.
             I did that separately for each
    version of ANM s code that is listed in my
    declaration, and I did that for the versions
    of Sleep Number s code that I was provided to
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